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Clarification Note #3 

GSA internal reference: 219435 
 

Procurement procedure: GSA/OP/20/15 GRC Development, Operations 

Support and Hosting Services 

Question #7: Section 3.1.2 of this NDA states that: 
“The Recipient shall not copy, reproduce, duplicate, distribute, communicate or otherwise make 
available the Proprietary Information, either in whole or in part, to third parties unless and to the 
extent the GSA gives its express prior written authorisation thereto subject to the Recipient 
demonstration of a strict need-to know of the third party and the submission to the GSA of a signed 
NDA with the third party having the same obligations as this Agreement.” 

If a potential tenderer wants to discuss the Proprietary Information with other parties on order to 
allow bidding as a Consortium, are these (potential) consortium members considered ‘third parties’ 
under its NDA with GSA? Does this imply that prior written authorisation will have to be obtained 
to allow to communicate Proprietary Information with each and every party involved in the 
consortium, even if all of those parties have a signed NDA with the GSA? 

In order to discuss the Proprietary Information does the tenderer need to submit a signed NDA with 
each of these third parties for approval by GSA?    

Answer: Pursuant to Article 2.5.2 of the tender specifications, the interested economic operators / 
potential tenderers shall submit individual NDAs for each consortium member (in case of a 
consortium) and each subcontractor (if any), each individually signed by them respectively. Once the 
NDAs are signed with the GSA, there is no need such NDAs to be signed between the potential 
consortium members / subcontractors in order to communicate (discuss) the Proprietary Information 
amongst them.  
 
The NDA shall be valid until two years after the expiry of the validity of the contract for the winning 
tenderer – then contractor. The provision allowing to grant access to the Proprietary Information to 
third parties after a signed  NDA with the  tenderer/contractor (and after the GSA gives its express 
prior written authorisation subject to the recipient demonstrating of a strict need to know and the 
submission of a signed NDA with the third party – see article 3.1.2 of the NDA) refers to the period 
after the NDA signature in relation to third parties which are not subcontractors (e.g. advisors) and 
after contract signature. After contract signature in order to flow down / communicate the Proprietary 
Information an NDA shall be signed between the GRC contractor and the third party (which shall have 
the role of a new subcontractor, and which according to the contract shall have to be approved by the 
GSA as well - see Article II.9 Subcontracting). 
 

 
Question #8: Would the ‘third parties’ mentioned in section 3.1.2 need to be under NDA with GSA 
to obtain the ‘express prior written authorisation’, or would it suffice to submit an NDA among the 
parties that protects the Proprietary Information to the same extent? 
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Answer: See answer 7 above 
 
Question #9: Is the understanding correct that the GSA does not allow parties that are already 
individually under NDA with GSA to share and communicate Proprietary Information unless an 
additional NDA among those parties is submitted and approved by GSA?   
 
Answer: This is not correct understanding. As soon as parties have signed individual NDAs with the 
GSA, there is no need for the parties to have an additional NDAs between themselves. See as well 
answer 7 above.   
 

 
Question #10: Clarification concerning the subcontracting requirements stated in 2.9.8 of the 
tender specifications (Annex I to ITT) is sought: 

a. Is the work to be performed by the subcontractors who have been identified in the 
“Core Team” included or excluded as part of the minimum/maximum indicative 
subcontracting share?  

b. Section 2.9.8(b) states:  “the subcontractors chosen by the tenderer, other than 
those under letter (i) above...”. There is no “letter (i)”, could the GSA please 
clarify?  

c. Are the minimum/maximum indicative subcontracting shares assessed on the 
contract value of the collective Framework or across each Specific Contract?  

Answer:  

a. The work to be performed by the subcontractors who have been identified in the 
“Core Team” is to be considered as part of (included in) the subcontracting share 
which must be in the range specified in section 2.9.8. 

b.  It is a typo – it should read (a) instead. 
c. The requirement applies to the FWC. 
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